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Distribution policy
Dividend and Income Fund (the “Fund”), acting pursuant to a Securities
and Exchange Commission exemptive order and with the approval of
the Fund’s Board of trustees (the “Board”), has adopted a policy, con-
sistent with its investment objectives and policies, to provide share-
holders with a relatively stable cash flow per share (the “Distribution
policy”). the Fund currently distributes $0.20 per share on a quarterly
basis, and currently expects to maintain this distribution rate except
for, among other things, extraordinary distributions and potential dis-
tribution rate increases or decreases to enable the Fund to comply with
the distribution requirements for regulated investment companies
under the Internal revenue Code of 1986, as amended. the Distribu-
tion policy may be amended, suspended, or terminated by the Board
without prior notice to shareholders; however, at this time, there are
no reasonably foreseeable circumstances that might cause its termi-
nation. the suspension or termination of the Distribution policy could
have the effect of creating a trading discount (if the Fund’s stock is
trading at or above net asset value) or widening an existing trading dis-
count. Distributions may be paid in part or in full from net investment
income, realized capital gains, return of capital, or a combination
thereof. Shareholders should note, however, that if the Fund’s aggre-
gate net investment income and net realized capital gains are less than
the amount of the distribution level, the difference will be distributed
from the Fund’s assets and will constitute a return of the shareholder’s
capital. A return of capital may occur, for example, when some or all of
the money that a shareholder invested in the Fund is paid back to the
shareholder. Distributions do not necessarily reflect the Fund’s invest-
ment performance and should not be confused with “yield” or “in-
come.” Additionally, a return of capital is not taxable; rather it reduces
a shareholder’s tax basis in his or her shares of the Fund. 

the Fund is subject to u.S. corporate, tax, and securities laws. under
u.S. tax accounting rules, the amount of distributable net income is
determined on an annual basis and is dependent during the fiscal

year on the aggregate gains and losses realized by the Fund and, to a
lesser extent, other factors.  therefore, the actual amounts and
sources of the amounts for tax reporting purposes will depend upon
the Fund’s investment experience during the entirety of its fiscal year
and may be subject to changes based on tax regulations. under the In-
vestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Company Act”),
however, the Fund is required to indicate the source of each distribu-
tion to shareholders in a Section 19(a) notice. the amounts and
sources of distributions reported in the Section 19(a) notices are only
estimates based on book basis earnings, are likely to change over
time, and are not being provided for tax reporting purposes.  the
amounts and sources of distributions year-to-date may be subject to
additional adjustments.

As of the Fund’s fiscal year end, actual amounts and sources for tax
reporting purposes of the distributions will be determined and reported
to shareholders on Form 1099-DIV.  the Fund’s total return perform-
ance on a net asset value basis is presented in its financial highlights
table. there is no guarantee that the Fund’s current Distribution pol-
icy will reduce or eliminate the Fund’s market price discount to its net
asset value per share, if any, and the Fund’s trustees have no fiduci-
ary duty to take action, or to consider taking any action, to narrow any
such discount. 

Shareholders should not draw any conclusions about the Fund’s in-
vestment performance from the amount of the Fund’s distributions or
from the Distribution policy.  the Fund is subject to risks that could
have an adverse impact on its ability to maintain level distributions. Ex-
amples of potential risks include, but are not limited to, economic
downturns impacting the markets, equity securities risk, corporate
bonds risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, leverage and borrowing risk,
and other risks discussed in the Fund’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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pOrtFOlIO ANAlYSIS
December 31, 2018

Security Holdings by Sector on December 31, 2018*

TOP TEN 
SECURITY HOLDINGS

1 Credit Acceptance Corporation

2 tractor Supply Company 

3 AutoZone, Inc.

4 pACCAr Inc.  

5 Hormel Foods Corporation  

6 Apple Inc. 

7 Intel Corporation 

8 Broadcom Inc.

9 the Walt Disney Company

10 Discovery, Inc.

December 31, 2018

top ten security holdings and industries are shown for informational purposes only and are subject to change. the above portfolio information
should not be considered as a recommendation to purchase or sell a particular security and there is no assurance that any securities will remain
in or out of the Fund.

* Based on approximate percentages of net assets and may not
add up to 100% due to leverage, cash or other assets, rounding,
and other factors. Allocations of less than 1% in the aggregate
are not shown. Allocations are subject to change.

TOP TEN 
INDUSTRIES

1 transportation Equipment

2 Electronic and Other Electrical Equipment and
Components, except Computer Equipment 

3 Chemical and Allied products

4 Security and Commodity Brokers, Dealers, 
Exchanges and Services

5 Communications 

6 Food and Kindred products 

7 Business Services  

8 transportation by Air 

9 Industrial and Commercial Machinery and 
Computer Equipment

10 Building Materials, Hardware, Garden Supply,
and Mobile Home Dealers

December 31, 2018

top ten security holdings comprise approximately 18%
of total assets.
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tO Our SHArEHOlDErS
December 31, 2018

Dear Fellow Shareholders: 
It is a pleasure to welcome each of our new shareholders to Dividend
and Income Fund and to submit this 2018 Annual report. the Fund
seeks to achieve its primary investment objective of high current in-
come and secondary objective of capital appreciation by investing,
under normal circumstances, at least 50% of its total assets in in-
come generating equity securities. these securities may include div-
idend paying common stocks, convertible securities, preferred
stocks, securities of registered investment companies, exchange
traded funds organized as investment companies or otherwise, real
estate investment trusts, depositary receipts, and other equity re-
lated securities. Of course, there can be no assurance that the Fund
will achieve its objectives.

Economic and Market report 
During the December 2018 meeting of the Federal Open Market
Committee (“FOMC”) of the Federal reserve Bank (the “Fed”), the
Fed’s staff reviewed economic data  which suggested “that labor
market conditions continued to strengthen in recent months and that
real GDp growth was strong,” citing the decrease in the national un-
employment rate to “a very low level of 3.7%” in November 2018.
regarding inflation, the staff noted that “consumer price inflation,
as measured by the 12 month percentage change in the price index
for personal consumption expenditures (pCE), was 2% in October.” In
addition, compensation, as measured by hourly earnings, increased
3.1% in the twelve months ended in November 2018.

In financial markets, the Fed staff noted “concerns over escalating
trade tensions, global growth prospects, and the sustainability of cor-
porate earnings growth” as “among the factors that appeared to con-
tribute to a significant drop in u.S. equity prices.” Yet, the staff opined
that “financing conditions for businesses and households tightened
a bit but generally remained supportive of economic growth.”

the members of the FOMC “judged that the economy had been evolv-
ing about as they had anticipated at the previous meeting.” As a re-
sult, “the u.S. economic forecast prepared by the staff for the
December FOMC meeting was little revised on balance.”  the min-
utes of the meeting highlight that “[o]ver the 2018–20 period, real
GDp was forecast to rise at a rate above the staff’s estimate of po-
tential output growth and then slow to a pace below it in 2021.”  the
FOMC concluded that “some further gradual increases in the target
range for the federal funds rate would be consistent with sustained
expansion of economic activity.” 

In general, the FOMC appears to be expecting economic growth to re-
main above trend in 2019 and then slow. Accordingly, we believe that

investors might anticipate favorable, although possibly volatile, mar-
kets in 2019, and that economic and market risks suggest a careful
strategy.

Investment Strategy and returns 
In view of these economic and market developments, the Fund’s
strategy in 2018 was to seek to emphasize profitable, conservatively
valued companies across a broad array of industries. Generally, the
Fund purchased and held income generating equity securities in
seeking to achieve its primary investment objective of high current in-
come and secondary objective of capital appreciation and sold in-
vestments that appeared to have appreciated to levels reflecting full
or over-valuation. In the twelve months ended December 31, 2018,
the Fund’s net investment income, net realized gain on investments,
and unrealized depreciation on investments were, respectively,
$2,436,296, $5,045,502, and $43,151,928, which contributed sig-
nificantly to the Fund’s net asset value return of (18.75)%, including
the reinvestment of dividends, as did dilution occurring under the
Fund’s rights offering and dividend reinvestment plan. profitable
sales in the period were made of, among others, shares of Wynd-
ham Worldwide Corporation in the hotels, rooming houses, camps,
and other lodging places sector and DSt Systems, Inc. in the busi-
ness services sector. losses were taken on, among others, Ford
Motor Company in the transportation equipment sector and Wpp plc
in the business services sector. Although no particular investment
was responsible for the majority of the unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on investments over the period, Allegiant travel Com-
pany in the transportation by air sector and philip Morris Interna-
tional, Inc. in the tobacco products sector were significant
contributors to unrealized depreciation during the period. At the
same time, the Fund benefited from unrealized appreciation from its
holdings of Credit Acceptance Corporation in the non-depository
credit institutions sector and AutoZone, Inc. in the automotive deal-
ers and gasoline service stations sector.

the Fund’s market return for 2018, also including the reinvestment
(24.54)%. Generally, the Fund’s total return on a market value basis
will be lower than total return on a net asset value basis in periods
where there is an increase in the discount or a decrease in the pre-
mium of the market value to the net asset value from the beginning
to the end of such periods. For comparison, in the same period, the
S&p 500 Index total return was (4.38)%. this index is unmanaged
and does not reflect fees and expenses, nor is it available for direct
investment. At December 31, 2018, the Fund’s portfolio included ap-
proximately 100 securities of different issuers, with the top ten
amounting to approximately 18% of total assets. At that time, the
Fund's investments totaled approximately $185 million on net
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assets of approximately $159 million and leverage of approxi-
mately $26 million. As the Fund pursues its primary investment ob-
jective of seeking high current income, with capital appreciation as
a secondary objective, these holdings and allocations are subject to
change at any time.

Quarterly Distributions 
On December 3, 2018, the Fund declared a distribution of $0.20,
its fourth distribution of the year, bringing the annual total to $0.70
per share. the quarterly distribution reflects the Fund’s current dis-
tribution policy to provide shareholders with a relatively stable cash
flow per share. there is no guarantee that the Fund’s current distri-
bution policy will reduce or eliminate the Fund’s market price dis-
count to its net asset value per share and the Fund’s trustees have
no fiduciary duty to take action, or to consider taking any action, to
narrow any such discount. the distribution policy may be changed
or discontinued without notice.

Based on the Fund’s results as of December 31, 2018 of the
sources, (i) in the December 31, 2018 quarter, for the distribution
of $0.20 per share are approximately 16% from net investment in-
come, 67% from net realized capital gains, and 17% from return of
capital or other capital source, and (ii) in the 2018 fiscal year-to-date
which commenced on January 1, for the year-to-date cumulative dis-
tributions of $0.70 per share are approximately 16% from net in-
vestment income, 67% from net realized capital gains, and 17% from
return of capital or other capital sources. Shareholders should not
draw any conclusions about the Fund’s investment performance from
the amount of this distribution. the amounts and sources of distri-
butions reported are only estimates based on book basis earnings,
are likely to change over time, and are not being provided for tax re-
porting purposes. the actual amounts and sources of the amounts
for tax reporting purposes will depend upon the Fund’s investment
experience during the entirety of its fiscal year and may be subject
to changes based on tax regulations. the amounts and sources of
distributions year-to-date may be subject to additional adjustments.

the Fund intends to send shareholders a Form 1099-DIV for the cal-
endar year that will instruct how to report these distributions for fed-
eral income tax purposes. Distributions may be paid in part or in full
from net investment income, realized capital gains, return of capi-
tal, or a combination thereof. Shareholders should note, however,
that if the Fund’s aggregate net investment income and net realized
capital gains are less than the amount of the distribution level, the

difference will be distributed from the Fund’s assets and will consti-
tute a return of the shareholder’s capital. A return of capital may
occur, for example, when some or all of the money that a shareholder
invested in the Fund is paid back to the shareholder. Distributions do
not necessarily reflect the Fund’s investment performance and
should not be confused with “yield” or “income.” Additionally, a return
of capital is not taxable; rather it reduces a shareholder’s tax basis
in his or her shares of the Fund.

Dividend reinvestment plan
For those shareholders currently receiving the Fund’s quarterly dis-
tributions in cash but are interested in adding to their account
through the Fund’s Dividend reinvestment plan (the “plan”), we en-
courage you to review the plan set forth later in this document and
contact the Fund’s transfer Agent, who will be pleased to assist you
with no obligation on your part.

Fund Website 
the Fund’s website, www.DividendandIncomeFund.com, provides in-
vestors with investment information, news, and other material about
the Fund. the website also has links to SEC filings, performance, tax,
and daily net asset value reporting. You are invited to use this re-
source to learn more about the Fund.

Management’s long term Focus
We thank you for investing in the Fund and share your enthusiasm for
its potential, as evidenced by the fact that affiliates of the Invest-
ment Manager own approximately 8.9% of the Fund’s outstanding
shares pursuant to the Fund’s governing documents that permit own-
ership of more than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares only
with the prior approval of the Fund’s Board of trustees. We look for-
ward to serving your investment needs over the years ahead.

Sincerely, 

thomas B. Winmill 
president and Co-portfolio Manager 

William Winmill
Vice president and Co-portfolio Manager

tO Our SHArEHOlDErS
December 31, 2018
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See notes to financial statements.

SCHEDulE OF pOrtFOlIO INVEStMENtS
Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

Common Stocks (111.17%) Shares Value Shares Value

Apparel and Accessory Stores (1.30%)
L Brands, Inc. 40,000 $ 1,026,800 
The GAP, Inc. 40,000 1,030,400 

2,057,200 

Automotive Dealers and Gasoline Service Stations (2.22%)
AutoZone, Inc. (a) 4,200 3,521,028

Automotive Repair, Services, and Parking (1.45%)
AMERCO 7,000 2,296,770 

Building Materials, Hardware, Garden Supply, and Mobile Home
Dealers (3.86%)
The Home Depot, Inc. 15,000 2,577,300 
Tractor Supply Company 42,500 3,546,200 

6,123,500 

Business Services (6.55%)
eBay Inc. (a) 70,000 1,964,900 
MAXIMUS, Inc. 38,500 2,505,965 
Omnicom Group Inc. 37,000 2,709,880
Robert Half International Inc. 36,700 2,099,240 
United Rentals, Inc. (a) 11,000 1,127,830 

10,407,815

Chemical and Allied Products (7.63%)
Amgen Inc. 13,500 2,628,045 
LyondellBasell Industries N.V.  Class A 27,500 2,286,900 
Pfizer Inc. 35,000 1,527,750 
Prestige Consumer Healthcare Inc. (a) 52,000 1,605,760 
Roche Holding Ltd. ADR 80,000 2,486,400 
Westlake Chemical Corporation 24,000 1,588,080 

12,122,935 

Communications (7.33%)
AT&T Inc. 72,000 2,054,880
Comcast Corporation 70,000 2,383,500
Discovery, Inc. (a) 110,000 2,721,400
Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. 35,000 921,900
The Walt Disney Company 25,500 2,796,075 
Viacom Inc. 30,000 771,000 

11,648,755 
Depository Institutions (3.34%)
Citizens Financial Group, Inc. 50,000 1,486,500 
Signature Bank Corp. 20,500 2,107,605 
Wells Fargo & Company 37,000 1,704,960 

5,299,065 

Eating and Drinking Places (1.66%)
Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. 16,500 2,637,690 

Educational Services (1.06%)
Grand Canyon Education, Inc. (a) 17,500 $ 1,682,450 

Electronic and Other Electrical Equipment and Components, except
Computer Equipment (9.45%)
Acuity Brands, Inc. 17,000 1,954,150
Broadcom Inc. 11,750 2,987,790
Intel Corporation 65,000 3,050,450 
Methode Electronics, Inc. 50,000 1,164,500 
Skyworks Solutions, Inc. 31,500 2,111,130
Taiwan Semiconductor 

Manufacturing Company Ltd. 40,000 1,476,400
Texas Instruments Incorporated 24,000 2,268,000 

15,012,420

Fabricated Metal Products, except Machinery and Transportation
Equipment (1.46%)
Snap-on Incorporated 16,000 2,324,640 

Food and Kindred Products (6.80%)
Hormel Foods Corporation 80,000 3,414,400 
Ingredion Incorporated 20,000 1,828,000 
Kellogg Company 28,000 1,596,280 
Sanderson Farms, Inc. 19,000 1,886,510 
Tyson Foods, Inc. 39,000 2,082,600 

10,807,790 

Food Stores (1.38%)
The Kroger Co. 80,000 2,200,000 

General Merchandise Stores (3.40%)
Big Lots, Inc. 55,000 1,590,600
Dollar General Corporation 20,600 2,226,448 
Dollar Tree, Inc. (a) 17,500 1,580,600 

5,397,648 

Health Services (1.11%)
Laboratory Corporation 

of America Holdings (a) 14,000 1,769,040 

Holding and other Investment Offices (1.20%)
Senior Housing Properties Trust 65,000 761,800 
Tanger Factory Outlet Centers, Inc. 56,250 1,137,375 

1,899,175 

Home Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Stores (1.30%)
Williams-Sonoma, Inc. 41,000 2,068,450 
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SCHEDulE OF pOrtFOlIO INVEStMENtS
Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

See notes to financial statements.

Common Stocks (continued) Shares Value Shares Value

Industrial and Commercial Machinery 
and Computer Equipment (4.01%)
Apple Inc. 20,500 $ 3,233,670 
Eaton Corporation plc 18,000 1,235,880 
Lam Research Corporation 14,000 1,906,380 

6,375,930 

Insurance Carriers (1.51%)
Prudential Financial, Inc. 29,500 2,405,725 

Metal Mining (1.03%)
Fresnillo plc 150,100 1,644,031

Miscellaneous Retail (1.59%)
Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. 37,000 2,528,210 

Motor Freight Transportation and Warehousing (1.23%)
J.B. Hunt Transport Services, Inc. 21,000 1,953,840 

Non-Depository Credit Institutions (3.58%)
Credit Acceptance Corporation (a) 11,500 4,390,240 
Discover Financial Services 22,000 1,297,560 

5,687,800 

Paper and Allied Products (1.76%)
Packaging Corporation of America 24,000 2,003,040 
Schweitzer-Mauduit International, Inc. 31,755 795,463 

2,798,503 

Pipelines, Except Natural Gas (0.53%)
Enbridge Inc. 27,108 842,517 

Primary Metal Industries (0.71%)
Worthington Industries, Inc. 32,500 1,132,300 

Printing, Publishing, and Allied Industries (0.65%)
Deluxe Corporation 27,000 1,037,880 

Railroad Transportation (1.08%)
Kansas City Southern 18,000 1,718,100

Security and Commodity Brokers, Dealers, 
Exchanges, and Services (7.39%)
Ameriprise Financial Inc. 18,000 1,878,660 
BlackRock, Inc. 4,700 1,846,254 
Cohen & Steers, Inc. 65,000 2,230,800 
Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc. 11,728 1,752,749 
Lazard Ltd. Class A 41,500 1,531,765 
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. 27,000 2,492,640 

11,732,868

Stone, Clay, Glass, and Concrete Products (1.00%)
Apogee Enterprises, Inc. 53,000 $ 1,582,050

Tobacco Products (3.27%)
Altria Group, Inc. 35,000 1,728,650
British American Tobacco P.L.C. 50,000 1,593,000
Philip Morris International Inc. 28,000 1,869,280 

5,190,930 

Transportation by Air (5.47%)
Alaska Air Group, Inc. 42,000 2,555,700 
Allegiant Travel Company 19,700 1,974,334 
Hawaiian Holdings, Inc. 80,000 2,112,800 
Southwest Airlines Co. 44,000 2,045,120 

8,687,954 

Transportation Equipment (9.56%)
Huntington Ingalls Industries, Inc. 4,700 894,457 
LCI Industries 22,500 1,503,000 
Lear Corporation 14,000 1,720,040 
Magna International Inc. 53,000 2,408,850 
Oshkosh Corporation 32,500 1,992,575
PACCAR Inc. 60,000 3,428,400
Thor Industries, Inc. 20,000 1,040,000
WABCO Holdings Inc. (a) 20,500 2,200,470

15,187,792

Wholesale Trade - Durable Goods (1.52%)
TE Connectivity Ltd. 32,000 2,420,160 

Wholesale Trade - Nondurable Goods (2.78%)
AmerisourceBergen Corporation 26,750 1,990,200 
Cardinal Health, Inc. 27,000 1,204,200 
McKesson Corporation 11,000 1,215,170

4,409,570 

Total common stocks (Cost $183,049,843) 176,612,531 

Principal
Corporate Bonds and Notes (0.30%) Amount Value

Electric Services (0.30%)
Elwood Energy LLC, 8.159%, 

7/5/26  (Cost $433,377) 428,077 468,744 

Reorganization Interests (0.00%) Shares Value

Penson Technologies LLC Units (a) (b)

(Cost $ 0) 813,527 0
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SCHEDulE OF pOrtFOlIO INVEStMENtS
Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

Master Limited Partnership (1.64%) Units Value Shares Value

Electric, Gas, and Sanitary Services (0.62%)
Enterprise Products Partners LP  40,000 $ 983,600 

Mining and Quarrying of Nonmetallic Minerals, 
Except Fuels (1.02%)
Ciner Resources LP 75,268 1,614,499 

Total master limited partnerships (Cost $2,498,438) 2,598,099 

Preferred Stocks (3.49%) Shares Value

Holding and other Investment Offices (3.29%)
Ashford Hospitality Trust, Inc., 

7.50 % Series H 15,000 286,800 
CBL & Associates Properties, Inc., 

7.375% Series D 90,000 952,200 
CBL & Associates Properties, Inc., 

6.625% Series E 60,000 573,600 
Cedar Realty Corp., 6.50% Series C 15,000 284,700 
Colony Capital, Inc., 7.15% Series I 20,000 369,000 
Hersha Hospitality Trust 6.50% Series D 12,000 242,400 

Hersha Hospitality Trust 6.50% Series E 12,000 $ 249,120 
Kimco Realty Corp., 5.125% Series L 20,000 394,200 
Kimco Realty Corp., 5.25% Series M 20,000 409,000 
Pennsylvania REIT, 6.875% Series D 35,000 543,900 
Public Storage Depositary Shares, 

4.95% Series D 7,500 157,725 
Public Storage Depositary Shares, 

4.90% Series E 26,168 539,584 
Washington Prime Group, Inc., 

7.50% Series H 9,000 143,730 
Washington Prime Group, Inc., 

6.875% Series I 5,000 78,800 
5,224,759 

Water Transportation (0.20%)
Costamare, Inc., 8.75% Series D 15,000 315,000 

Total preferred stocks (Cost $6,929,694) 5,539,759 

Total investments (Cost $192,911,352) (116.60%) (c) 185,219,133 
Liabilities in excess of cash and other 

assets (-16.60%) (26,366,889)

Net assets (100.00%) $ 158,852,244

See notes to financial statements.

(a) Non-income producing.
(b) Illiquid and/or restricted security that has been fair valued.
(c) The Fund's total investment portfolio value of $185,219,133 has been pledged as collateral for borrowings under the Fund’s credit facility.
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StAtEMENt OF ASSEtS AND lIABIlItIES
Financial Statements

See notes to financial statements.

Financial StatementsFinancial Statements

December 31, 2018

Assets 
Investments, at value (cost: $192,911,352) $ 185,219,133 
Cash 3,595 
Receivables:

Dividends 381,118 
Due from transfer agent 283,387 
Interest 17,594 
Foreign withholding tax reclaims 5,766 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 66,317 

Total assets 185,976,910 

Liabilities
Credit facility borrowing 26,728,200 
Payables:

Accrued expenses 216,180 
Investment management 156,319 
Administrative services 20,254 
Trustees 3,713

Total liabilities 27,124,666 

Net Assets $ 158,852,244 

Net Asset Value Per Share
(applicable to shares issued and outstanding: 12,387,123) $ 12.82 

Net Assets Consist of
Paid in capital $ 165,375,425 
Distributable earnings (6,523,181)

$ 158,852,244
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Financial Statements

Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Investment Income
Dividends (net of $25,979 foreign tax withholding) $ 5,485,081 
Interest 60,022 

Total investment income 5,545,103 

Expenses
Investment management 1,885,450 
Interest and fees on credit facility 557,347 
Administrative services 183,398 
Bookkeeping and pricing 105,350 
Legal 96,740 
Trustees 87,329 
Insurance 48,920 
Auditing 39,175 
Exchange listing and registration 37,135 
Transfer agent 23,809 
Shareholder communications 19,841 
Custodian 16,815 
Other 13,954 

Total expenses 3,115,263 
Expense reduction (6,456)

Net expenses 3,108,807 

Net investment income 2,436,296 

Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Net realized gain on

Investments 5,042,614 
Foreign currencies 2,888 

Unrealized depreciation on investments (43,151,928)

Net realized and unrealized loss (38,106,426)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations $ (35,670,130)

See notes to financial statements.
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Financial Statements

StAtEMENtS OF CHANGES IN NEt ASSEtS
Financial Statements

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Operations
Net investment income $ 2,436,296 $ 1,680,452
Net realized gain on investments 5,045,502 5,222,643 
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments (43,151,928) 27,388,457 

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations (35,670,130) 34,291,552 

Distributions to Shareholders (1)

Distributable earnings (7,121,597) (5,069,752)
Return of capital (1,523,838) (1,331,440)

Total distributions (8,645,435) (6,401,192)

Capital Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued in rights offering 23,497,606 -   
Offering costs of share offering charged to paid in capital (159,595) -   
Reinvestment of distributions to shareholders 428,441 506,033 

Increase in net assets from capital share transactions 23,766,452 506,033 

Total change in net assets (20,549,113) 28,396,393 

Net Assets
Beginning of period 179,401,357 151,004,964 

End of period (2) $ 158,852,244 $ 179,401,357 

(1) The SEC eliminated the requirements to disclose components of distributions paid to shareholders in
September 2018.  Included in distributions from distributable earnings for the year ended December 31, 2017
was $4,127,125 from investment income and $942,627 from capital gains.
(2) The SEC eliminated the requirement to disclose undistributed net investment income in September 2018.
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StAtEMENt OF CASH FlOWS

Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations $ (35,670,130)
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets resulting from operations

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Unrealized depreciation on investments 43,151,928 
Net realized gain on sales of investments (5,045,502)
Purchase of long term investments (122,802,747)
Proceeds from sales of long term investments 113,559,037 
Net sales of short term investments 435,965 
Amortization of premium on investments 523 
Increase in dividends receivable (155,844)
Increase in due from transfer agent (258,209)
Decrease in interest receivable 1,198 
Increase in foreign withholding tax reclaims (1,688)
Decrease in deferred rights offering expenses 42,489 
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets (29,479)
Decrease in accrued expenses (22,574)
Decrease in investment management fee payable (15,913)
Decrease in administrative services payable (33,616)
Decrease in trustee expenses payable (1,060)

Net cash used in operating activities (6,845,622)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from capital shares issued in share offering 23,497,606 
Offering costs of share offering (159,595)
Credit facility repayment, net (8,271,800)
Cash distributions paid (8,216,994)

Net cash provided by financing activities 6,849,217 

Net change in cash 3,595 

Cash
Beginning of period -   

End of period $ 3,595 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest on credit facility $ 254,589 
Non-cash financing activities not included herein consisted of:

Reinvestment of dividend distributions $ 428,441 



DIVIDEND AND INCOME FUND11 Annual report 2018 DIVIDEND AND INCOME FUND

NOtES tO FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS
Financial Statements

December 31, 2018NOtES tO FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS
Financial Statements

1. OrGANIZAtION AND SIGNIFICANt ACCOuNtING pOlICIES Divi-
dend and Income Fund (the “Fund”), a Delaware statutory trust reg-
istered under the Company Act, is a diversified, closed end
management investment company whose shares are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol DNI. the Fund’s
primary investment objective is to seek high current income. Capital
appreciation is a secondary objective. the Fund retains Bexil Advis-
ers llC as its investment manager (the “Investment Manager”).  

As an investment company, the Fund follows the accounting and re-
porting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Ac-
counting Standard Codification topic 946 “Financial Services –
Investment Companies.” the financial statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the united States of America (“GAAp”), which require manage-
ment to make certain estimates and assumptions at the date of
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those es-
timates. Subsequent events, if any, through the date that the fi-
nancial statements were issued have been evaluated in the
preparation of the financial statements. the following summarizes
the significant accounting policies of the Fund:

Valuation of Investments – portfolio securities are valued by var-
ious methods depending on the primary market or exchange on
which they trade. Most equity securities for which the primary mar-
ket is in the united States are usually valued at the official clos-
ing price, last sale price or, if no sale has occurred, at the closing
bid price. Most equity securities for which the primary market is
outside the united States are usually valued using the official clos-
ing price or the last sale price in the principal market in which
they are traded. If the last sale price on the local exchange is un-
available, the last evaluated quote or closing bid price normally is
used. In the event of an unexpected closing of the primary mar-
ket or exchange, a security may continue to trade on one or more
other markets, and the price as reflected on those other trading
venues may be more reflective of the security’s value than an ear-
lier price from the primary market or exchange. Accordingly, the
Fund may seek to use these additional sources of pricing data or
information when prices from the primary market or exchange are
unavailable, or are earlier and less representative of current mar-
ket value. Certain debt securities may be priced through pricing
services that may utilize a matrix pricing system which takes into
consideration factors such as yields, prices, maturities, call fea-
tures, and ratings on comparable securities or according to
prices quoted by a securities dealer that offers pricing services.
Open end investment companies are valued at their net asset
value. Foreign securities markets may be open on days when the
u.S. markets are closed. For this reason, the value of any foreign

securities owned by the Fund could change on a day when share-
holders cannot buy or sell shares of the Fund. Securities for which
market quotations are not readily available or reliable and other
assets may be valued as determined in good faith by the Invest-
ment Manager under the direction of or pursuant to procedures
approved by the Fund’s Board of trustees (the “Board”), called
“fair value pricing.” Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
fair value pricing values may differ from the values that would
have been used had a readily available and reliable market quo-
tation for the securities existed. these differences in valuation
could be material. A security’s valuation may differ depending on
the method used for determining value. the use of fair value pric-
ing by the Fund may cause the net asset value of its shares to dif-
fer from the net asset value that would be calculated using market
prices. A fair value price is an estimate and there is no assurance
that such price will be at or close to the price at which a security
is next quoted or traded.

Cash – Cash may include deposits allocated among banks in-
sured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in amounts
up to the insurance coverage maximum amount of $250,000.
Cash may also include uninvested cash balances held by the
Fund’s custodian.

Foreign Currency translation – Securities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into u.S. dollars at prevailing exchange
rates. realized gain or loss on sales of such investments in local
currency terms is reported separately from gain or loss attributa-
ble to a change in foreign exchange rates for those investments.

Investments in Other Investment Companies – the Fund may in-
vest in shares of other investment companies such as closed end
funds, exchange traded funds, and mutual funds (each, an “Ac-
quired Fund”) in accordance with the Company Act and related
rules. Shareholders in the Fund bear the pro rata portion of the
fees and expenses of an Acquired Fund in addition to the Fund’s
expenses. Expenses incurred by the Fund that are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations do not include fees and expenses
incurred by an Acquired Fund. the fees and expenses of an Ac-
quired Fund are reflected in such Acquired Fund’s total return.

Option transactions – the Fund may write (i.e., sell) covered call
options on securities or on indexes to attempt to enhance re-
turns through price changes of the option, increase income,
hedge to reduce overall portfolio risk, and hedge to reduce indi-
vidual security risk. When the Fund writes an option, an amount
equal to the premium received by the Fund is recorded as a lia-
bility and is subsequently adjusted to the current fair value of
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the option written. premiums received from writing options that
expire unexercised are treated by the Fund on the expiration date
as realized gains from investments. the difference between the
premium and the amount paid on effecting a closing purchase
transaction, including brokerage commissions, is also treated as
a realized gain or, if the premium is less than the amount paid for
the closing purchase transaction, as a realized loss. If a call op-
tion is exercised, the premium is added to the proceeds from the
sale of the underlying security or currency in determining whether
the Fund has realized a gain or loss. If a put option is exercised,
the premium reduces the cost basis of the securities purchased
by the Fund. the Fund, as the writer of an option, bears the mar-
ket risk of an unfavorable change in the price of the option. Writ-
ing option contracts results in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund’s
ultimate obligation to satisfy terms of the contract may exceed
the amount recognized in the statement of assets and liabilities.

Investments in real Estate Investment trusts (“rEIts”) – Dividend
income is recorded based on the income included in distributions
received from the rEIt investments using published rEIt reclas-
sifications, including some management estimates when actual
amounts are not available. Distributions received in excess of this
estimated amount are recorded as a reduction of the cost of in-
vestments or reclassified to capital gains. the actual amounts of
income, return of capital, and capital gains are only determined
by each rEIt after its fiscal year end, and may differ from the es-
timated amounts.

Short Sales – the Fund may sell a security short it does not own in
anticipation of a decline in the market value of the security. When
the Fund sells a security short, it must borrow the security sold short
and deliver it to the broker/dealer through which it made the short
sale. the Fund is liable for any dividends or interest paid on secu-
rities sold short. A gain, limited to the price at which the Fund sold
the security short, or a loss, unlimited in size, normally is recog-
nized upon the termination of the short sale. Securities sold short
result in off balance sheet risk as the Fund’s ultimate obligation to
satisfy the terms of a sale of securities sold short may exceed the
amount recognized in the Statement of Assets and liabilities.

Investment transactions – Investment transactions are accounted
for on the trade date (the date the order to buy or sell is executed).
realized gains or losses are determined by specifically identifying
the cost basis of the investment sold.

Investment Income – Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date or in the case of certain foreign securities, as soon

as practicable after the Fund is notified. Interest income is
recorded on the accrual basis. Amortization of premium and ac-
cretion of discount on corporate bonds and notes are included in
interest income. taxes withheld on foreign dividends have been
provided for in accordance with the Fund’s understanding of the
applicable country’s tax rules and rates.

Expenses – Expenses deemed to have been incurred solely by the
Fund are normally charged to the Fund in the entirety. Expenses
deemed to have been incurred jointly by the Fund and one or more
of the other investment companies for which the Investment Man-
ager or its affiliates serve as investment manager, or other re-
lated entities, are generally allocated based on the most
practicable method deemed equitable at the time the expense is
incurred, including, without limitation, on the basis of relative as-
sets under management.

Expense reduction Arrangement – through an arrangement with
the Fund’s former custodian, State Street Bank and trust Com-
pany (“SSB”), credits realized as a result of borrowing activity
were used to reduce custodian expenses. Credits realized from
the custodian by the Fund during the year ended December 31,
2018 are shown as a reduction of total expenses in the State-
ment of Operations.  this expense reduction arrangement ter-
minated in June 2018.

Distributions to Shareholders – Distributions to shareholders are
determined in accordance with the Fund’s distribution policies and
income tax regulations and are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Income taxes – No provision has been made for u.S. income taxes
because the Fund’s current intention is to continue to qualify as a
regulated investment company under the Internal revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “IrC”), and to distribute to its share-
holders substantially all of its taxable income and net realized gains.
Foreign securities held by the Fund may be subject to foreign taxa-
tion. Foreign taxes, if any, are recorded based on the tax regula-
tions and rates that exist in the foreign markets in which the Fund
invests. the Fund recognizes the tax benefits of uncertain tax po-
sitions only where the position is “more likely than not” to be sus-
tained assuming examination by tax authorities. the Fund has
reviewed its tax positions and has concluded that no liability for un-
recognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax
positions taken on federal, state, and local income tax returns for
open tax years (2015-2017) or expected to be taken in the Fund’s
2018 tax returns.

NOtES tO FINANCIAl StAtEMENtS
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the Fund may be subject to foreign taxation related to income
received, capital gains on the sale of securities, and certain for-
eign currency transactions in the foreign jurisdictions in which it
invests. Foreign taxes, if any, are recorded based on the tax reg-
ulations and rates that exist in the foreign markets in which the
Fund invests. When a capital gain tax is determined to apply, the
Fund records an estimated deferred tax liability in an amount
that would be payable if the securities were disposed of on the
valuation date.

2. FEES AND trANSACtIONS WItH rElAtED pArtIES the Fund
has retained the Investment Manager pursuant to an investment
management agreement. under the terms of the investment man-
agement agreement, the Investment Manager receives a fee
payable monthly for investment advisory services at an annual
rate of 0.95% of the Fund’s Managed Assets. “Managed Assets”
means the average weekly value of the Fund’s total assets minus
the sum of the Fund’s liabilities, which liabilities exclude debt re-
lating to leverage, short term debt, and the aggregate liquidation
preference of any outstanding preferred stock.

pursuant to the investment management agreement, the Fund re-
imburses the Investment Manager for providing at cost certain ad-
ministrative services comprised of compliance and accounting
services. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Fund’s re-
imbursements of such costs were $183,398, of which $86,772
and $96,626 was for compliance and accounting services, re-
spectively.  Certain officers and trustees of the Fund are officers
and managers of the Investment Manager. As of December 31,
2018, Bexil Securities llC (“Bexil Securities”), an affiliate of the In-
vestment Manager, and the Investment Manager, collectively,
owned approximately 8.9% of the Fund’s outstanding shares, pur-
suant to the Fund’s governing documents that permit ownership of
more than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares only with the
prior approval of the Fund’s Board. During the year ended De-
cember 31, 2018, Bexil Securities acquired 190,000 shares of the
Fund through participation in the Fund’s rights offering. For the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, Bexil Securities and
the Investment Manager, collectively, acquired 23,243 and 31,860
shares of the Fund, respectively, through participation in the Fund’s
Dividend reinvestment plan.

Each Fund trustee who is not an employee of the Investment Man-
ager or its affiliates is compensated by the Fund. these trustees re-
ceive fees for service as a trustee from the Fund and, to the extent
applicable, the other investment companies for which the Invest-
ment Manager or its affiliates serve as investment manager. In ad-
dition, trustee out-of-pocket expenses are allocated to each fund

for which the Investment Manager or its affiliates serve as invest-
ment manager based on the most practicable method deemed eq-
uitable at the time the expense is incurred, including, without
limitation, on the basis of relative assets under management. Ex-
penses deemed to have been incurred solely by the Fund are nor-
mally charged to the Fund in the entirety.

3. DIStrIButIONS tO SHArEHOlDErS AND DIStrIButABlE
EArNINGS the tax character of distributions paid by the Fund for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are comprised of
the following:

As of December 31, 2018, the components of distributable earn-
ings on a tax basis were as follows: 

the difference between book and tax unrealized depreciation is
primarily related to partnership income.

Federal income tax regulations permit post-October net capital
losses, if any, to be deferred and recognized on the tax return of
the next succeeding taxable year.

GAAp requires certain components related to permanent dif-
ferences of net assets to be classified differently for financial
reporting than for tax reporting purposes. these differences
have no effect on net assets or net asset value per share.
these differences, which may result in distribution reclassifi-
cations, are primarily due to differences in partnership income,
return of capital dividends, recharacterization of capital gain
income, and timing of distributions. As of December 31, 2018,
the Fund recorded the following financial reporting reclassifica-
tions to the net asset accounts to reflect those differences:

Tax characteristics 
of distributions: 2018 2017
Ordinary income $     1,374,632 $      4,127,125
Capital gains 5,746,965 942,627
Return of capital 1,523,838 1,331,440
Total distribution $     8,645,435 $    6,401,1927

Unrealized depreciation $ (6,523,181)

Distributable 
Earnings

Paid
in Capital

$(20,514) $20,514
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4.  VAluE MEASurEMENtS GAAp establishes a hierarchy that pri-
oritizes inputs to valuation methods. the three levels of inputs are:

• level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identi-
cal assets or liabilities including securities actively traded on a
securities exchange.

• level 2 -  observable inputs other than quoted prices included
in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability which may
include quoted prices for similar instruments, interest rates, pre-
payment speeds, credit risk, yield curves, default rates, and sim-
ilar data.

• level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability including
the Fund’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market
participant would use in valuing the asset or liability.

the availability of observable inputs can vary from security to se-
curity and is affected by a wide variety of factors including, for ex-
ample, the type of security, whether the security is new and not
yet established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets, and
other characteristics particular to the security. to the extent that
valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable
or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value re-
quires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exer-
cised in determining fair value is greatest for investments
categorized in level 3. the inputs used to measure fair value may
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases,
the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement falls in its entirety is determined based on the low-
est level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. the inputs or methodology used for valuing investments are
not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in
those securities.

the following is a description of the valuation techniques applied
to the Fund’s major categories of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis:

Equity securities (common and preferred stock) – Most publicly
traded equity securities are valued normally at the most recent of-
ficial closing price, last sale price, evaluated quote, or closing bid
price. to the extent these securities are actively traded and valu-
ation adjustments are not applied, they may be categorized in level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. Equities on inactive markets or valued
by reference to similar instruments may be categorized in level 2.

Corporate bonds and notes – the fair value of corporate bonds
and notes is normally estimated using various techniques which
may consider, among other things, recently executed transactions
in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers, market price
quotations (where observable), bond spreads, and fundamental
data relating to the issuer. Although many corporate bonds and
notes may be categorized in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, in
instances where lower relative weight is placed on transaction
prices, quotations, or similar observable inputs, they may be cat-
egorized in level 3.

restricted and/or illiquid securities – restricted and/or illiquid se-
curities for which quotations are not readily available or reliable
may be valued with fair value pricing as determined in good faith
by the Investment Manager under the direction of or pursuant to
procedures approved by the Fund’s Board. restricted securities is-
sued by publicly traded companies are generally valued at a dis-
count to similar publicly traded securities. restricted or illiquid
securities issued by nonpublic entities may be valued by reference
to comparable public entities or fundamental data relating to the
issuer or both or similar inputs. Depending on the relative signifi-
cance of valuation inputs, these instruments may be categorized
in either level 2 or level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Common
Stocks

Reorganization
Interests Total

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Liquidation proceeds 6,388 - 6,388
Realized loss (307,892) - (307,892)
Transfers into (out of) level 3 - - -
Change in unrealized depreciation 301,504 - 301,504
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ - $ 0 $ 0
Net change in unrealized appreciation 
attributable to assets still held as level 3 
at December 31, 2018

$ - $ - $ -

ASSETS Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments, at value
Common stocks $  176,612,531 $                - $ - $  176,612,531
Corporate bonds and notes - 468,744 - 468,744
Reorganization interests - - 0 0
Master limited partnerships 2,598,099 - - 2,598,099
Preferred stocks 5,539,759 - - 5,539,759

Total investments, at value $  184,750,389 $     468,744 $          0 $  185,219,133

there were no securities transferred from level 1 to level 2 between December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018.

the following is a summary of the inputs used as of December 31, 2018 in valuing the Fund’s assets. refer to the Schedule of portfolio
Investments for detailed information on specific investments.

the following is a reconciliation of level 3 assets including securities valued at zero:

unrealized gains (losses) are included in the related amounts on
investments in the Statement of Operations.

the Investment Manager, under the direction of or pursuant to
procedures approved by the Fund’s Board, considers various val-
uation techniques and inputs for valuing assets categorized
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. these include, but are
not limited to: the type of the security; the size of the asset; the
initial cost of the security; the existence of any contractual re-
strictions on the security’s disposition; prices of and extent of
public trading in similar securities of the issuer or of comparable

companies; quotations or evaluated prices from broker-dealers
and/or pricing services; information obtained from the issuer or
analysts; an analysis of the company’s or issuer’s financial state-
ments; an evaluation of the forces that influence the issuer and
the market in which the asset is purchased and sold; multiples
of earnings, cash flow, enterprise value, and similar measures;
and the discount rate for lack of marketability. Significant
changes in any of those techniques or inputs in isolation may re-
sult in a significantly lower or higher fair value measurement.
the pricing of all fair value assets is regularly reported to the
Fund’s Board.

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range
Reorganization Interests $    0 Cost; last known market value for

predecessor securities; estimated
recovery on liquidation

Discount rate for lack of 
marketability

100%

the following table presents additional information about valuation techniques and inputs used for assets that are measured at fair value
and categorized as level 3 as of December 31, 2018:
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5. INVEStMENt trANSACtIONS purchases and proceeds from
sales or maturities of investment securities, excluding short term
investments, were $122,802,747 and $113,559,037, respectively,
for the year ended December 31, 2018.  As of December 31, 2018,
for federal income tax purposes, the aggregate cost of securities
was $191,742,314 and net unrealized depreciation was
$6,523,181, comprised of gross unrealized appreciation of
$15,512,113 and gross unrealized depreciation of $22,035,294. 

6. IllIQuID AND rEStrICtED SECurItIES the Fund owns securi-
ties which have a limited trading market and/or certain restrictions
on trading and, therefore, may be illiquid and/or restricted. Such
securities have been valued using fair value pricing. Due to the in-
herent uncertainty of valuation, fair value pricing values may differ
from the values that would have been used had a readily available
and reliable market quotation for the securities existed. these dif-
ferences in valuation could be material. Illiquid and/or restricted
securities owned as of December 31, 2018 were as follows:

7.  CrEDIt FACIlItY Effective June 18, 2018, the Fund entered into
a revolving Credit Agreement and other related agreements (col-
lectively, the “Credit Agreement”) with the Huntington National
Bank (“HNB”), the Fund’s custodian, under which HNB may make
loans to the Fund in such amounts as the Fund may from time to
time request. the maximum loan amount under the Credit Agree-
ment is the lesser of: (i) $50,000,000 or (ii) 30% of the Fund’s daily
market value, which market value may be decreased by the exclu-
sion of certain Fund assets or asset classes, as HNB may decide

from time to time in its sole discretion. the Fund pledges its secu-
rities and other assets as collateral to secure its obligations under
the Credit Agreement and retains the risks and rewards of the own-
ership of such securities and other assets pledged.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear an interest rate per
annum to be applied to the principal balance outstanding, from
time to time, equal to the london Interbank Offered rate (lIBOr)
plus 1.20%. An unused fee is charged equal to 0.125% per annum
of the daily excess of the maximum loan amount over the out-
standing principal balance of the loan.  the Fund was charged an
origination fee of $62,500 upon entering into the Credit Agree-
ment and such cost is amortized ratably through June 1, 2019,
the maturity date of the Credit Agreement. 

previously, the Fund had a liquidity Agreement (“lA”) with SSB,
formerly the Fund’s custodian and securities lending agent.  the
lA, which was terminated effective June 15, 2018, allowed the
Fund to draw up to $35 million (maximum liquidity commitment)
and included a securities lending authorization by the Fund to
SSB to engage in agency securities lending and reverse repur-
chase activity. Interest was charged on the drawn amount at the
rate of one-month lIBOr plus 1.20% per annum and a non-usage
fee was charged on the difference between the maximum liquid-
ity commitment and the drawn amount at the rate of one-month
lIBOr plus 0.07% per annum.

the outstanding loan balance under the Credit Agreement was
$26,728,200 as of December 31, 2018. the weighted average in-
terest rate and average daily amount outstanding under the Credit
Agreement and lA for the year ended December 31, 2018 were
3.18% and $7,992,146, respectively. the maximum amount out-
standing during the year ended December 31, 2018 was
$35,000,000.

8.  SHArE trANSACtIONS the Fund is authorized to issue an unlimited amount of $0.01 par value shares of beneficial interest. As of
December 31, 2018, there were 12,387,123 shares outstanding. Share transactions for the following periods were:

Acquisition 
Date Cost Value

Penson Technologies LLC 4/09/14 $       0 $      0

Percent of net assets 0% 0%

Shares issued in:

Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Shares                             Amount

Year Ended
December 31, 2017

Shares                        Amount
Rights offering 1,654,761 $    23,497,606 -                   $            -
Reinvestment of distributions 42,240 428,441 40,951                     506,033

1,697,001              $ 22,926,047 40,951                  $ 506,033
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On January 29, 2018, the Fund announced the completion and re-
sults of its non-transferable rights offering (the “Offer”) to share-
holders of record on December 26, 2017. the Offer commenced on
December 27, 2017 and expired on January 26, 2018 (the “Expira-
tion Date”).  the subscription price per share was $14.20, deter-
mined based upon a formula equal to 95% of the market price or
79% of the net asset value (“NAV”) per share, whichever is greater,
on the Expiration Date.  Market price per share was determined
based on the average of the last reported sales prices of a share on
the New York Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding the
Expiration Date (not including the Expiration Date).  For this purpose,
the market price per share, using the formula described above, was
$14.07 and the NAV per share on the Expiration Date was $17.98.
the Offer resulted in total gross proceeds of $23,497,606, prior to
the deduction of offering costs incurred of $159,595, and the is-
suance of 1,654,761 shares.  the NAV per share of the Fund was re-
duced by approximately $0.52 per share as a result of the issuance
of shares below NAV.

9.  MArKEt AND CrEDIt rISKS the Fund may invest in below in-
vestment grade  securities (commonly referred to as “junk” bonds).
Below investment grade securities are regarded as being pre-
dominantly speculative as to the issuer's ability to make payments
of principal and interest.  the risks associated with acquiring the
securities of such issuers generally are greater than is the case
with higher rated securities.  For example, during an economic
downturn or a sustained period of rising interest rates, issuers of
below investment grade securities may be more likely to experi-
ence financial stress, especially if such issuers are highly lever-
aged.  During periods of economic downturn, such issuers may not
have sufficient revenues to meet their interest payment obliga-
tions.  the issuer's ability to service its debt obligations also may
be adversely affected by specific issuer developments, the issuer's
inability to meet specific projected business forecasts, or the un-
availability of additional financing.  therefore, there can be no as-
surance that in the future there will not exist a higher default rate
relative to the rates currently existing in the market for below in-
vestment grade securities.  the risk of loss due to default by the
issuer is significantly greater for the holders of below investment
grade securities because such securities may be unsecured and
may be subordinate to other creditors of the issuer. the relative
illiquidity of some of these securities may adversely affect the abil-
ity of the Fund to dispose of such securities in a timely manner
and at a fair price at times when it might be necessary or advan-
tageous for the Fund to liquidate portfolio securities.

10.  FOrEIGN SECurItIES rISK Investments in the securities of
foreign issuers involve special risks which include changes in for-
eign exchange rates and the possibility of future adverse political,
tax, and economic developments which could adversely affect the
value of such securities.  Moreover, securities of foreign issuers
and securities traded in foreign markets may be less liquid and
their prices more volatile than those of u.S. issuers and markets.
In addition, in certain foreign countries, there is the possibility of
expropriation or confiscatory taxation, political, or social instability,
or diplomatic developments that could affect u.S. investments in
the securities of issuers domiciled in those countries.

11.  lEVErAGE rISK the Fund from time to time may borrow under
its credit facility to increase the assets in its investment portfolio
over its net assets, a practice called leverage.  leverage borrowing
creates an opportunity for increased return but, at the same time,
involves special risk considerations.  leverage increases the like-
lihood of greater volatility of NAV and market price of the Fund’s
shares.  If the return that the Fund earns on the additional securi-
ties purchased fails to cover the interest and fees incurred on the
monies borrowed, the NAV of the Fund (and the return of the Fund)
would be lower than if borrowing had not been incurred.  In addi-
tion, when the Fund borrows at a variable interest rate, there is a
risk that fluctuations in the interest rate may adversely affect the
return to the Fund’s shareholders.  Interest payments and fees in-
curred in connection with such borrowings will reduce the amount
of net income available for distribution to shareholders.  there is
no assurance that a borrowing strategy will be successful during
any period in which it is employed. Borrowing on a secured basis
results in certain additional risks.  Should securities that are
pledged as collateral to secure its obligations under the credit fa-
cility decline in value, the Fund may be required to pledge addi-
tional assets in the form of cash or securities to the lender to avoid
liquidation of the pledged assets.  In the event of a steep drop in
the value of pledged securities, it might not be possible to liqui-
date assets quickly enough and this could result in mandatory liq-
uidation of the pledged assets in a declining market at relatively
low prices.  Furthermore, the Investment Manager’s ability to sell
the pledged securities is limited by the terms of the credit facility,
which may reduce the Fund’s investment flexibility over the
pledged securities.  Because the fee paid to the Investment Man-
ager is calculated on the basis of the average weekly value of the
Fund’s total assets minus the sum of the Fund’s liabilities, which
liabilities exclude debt relating to leverage, short term debt and
the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred
stock, the dollar amount of the management fee paid by the Fund
to the Investment Manager will be higher (and the Investment Man-
ager will benefit to that extent) when leverage is utilized. 
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12.  CYBErSECurItY rISK With the increased use of technolo-
gies such as the Internet to conduct business, the Fund is sus-
ceptible to operational, information security, and related risks.
Cyber incidents affecting the Fund or its service providers may
cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially
resulting in financial losses, interference with the Fund’s ability
to calculate its NAV, impediments to trading, the inability of
shareholders to transact business, violations of applicable pri-
vacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational
damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or addi-
tional related costs.

13.  CONtINGENCIES the Fund indemnifies its officers and
trustees from certain liabilities that might arise from their per-
formance of their duties for the Fund. Additionally, in the normal
course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a
variety of representations and warranties and which may provide

general indemnifications. the Fund’s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown as it involves future claims that
may be made against the Fund under circumstances that have
not occurred. 

14.  SHArE rEpurCHASE prOGrAM In accordance with Section
23(c) of the Company Act, the Fund may from time to time repur-
chase its shares in the open market at the discretion of and upon
such terms as determined by the Board. the Fund did not repur-
chase any of its shares during the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

15.  OtHEr INFOrMAtION the Fund may at times raise cash for
investment by issuing shares through one or more offerings, in-
cluding rights offerings.  proceeds from any such offerings will be
invested in accordance with the investment objectives and poli-
cies of the Fund.
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(1)  The per share amounts were calculated using the average number of shares outstanding during the period.
(2)  Total return on a market value basis is calculated assuming a purchase of shares on the opening of the first day and a sale on the closing of the last day of each period reported. Dividends and distributions, 

if any, are assumed for purposes of this calculation to be reinvested at prices obtained under the Fund’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Generally, total return on a net asset value basis will be higher than total
return on a market value basis in periods where there is an increase in the discount or a decrease in the premium of the market value to the net asset value from the beginning to the end of such periods. 
Conversely, total return on a net asset value basis will be lower than total return on a market value basis in periods where there is a decrease in the discount or an increase in the premium of the market value
to the net asset value from the beginning to the end of such periods. Total return calculated for a period of less than one year is not annualized. The calculation does not reflect brokerage commissions, if any.

(3)  Expenses and income ratios do not include expenses incurred by the Acquired Funds in which the Fund invests.
(4)  “Total expenses” are the expenses of the Fund as presented in the Statement of Operations before fee waivers and expense reductions.
(5)  The ratio of net expenses excluding interest expense and fees incurred from the use of leverage to average net assets was 1.34%, 1.44%, 1.46%, 1.51%, and 1.47% for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, 2016,

2015, and 2014, respectively.
(6)  “Net expenses” are the expenses of the Fund presented in the Statement of Operations after expense reductions. 
(7)  Represents the value of total assets less liabilities not represented by senior securities representing indebtedness divided by the total number of senior indebtedness units, where one unit equals $1,000 of

senior indebtedness. For purposes of this calculation, the credit facility is considered a senior security representing indebtedness.

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $16.78 $14.18 $13.11 $16.66 $17.20
Income from investment operations: (1)

Net investment income 0.20 0.16 0.25 0.31 0.34
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments (2.93) 3.05 1.84 (1.68) 0.76

Total income (loss) from investment operations (2.73) 3.21 2.09 (1.37) 1.10
Less distributions:

Net investment income (0.11) (0.39) (0.23) (0.26) (1.63)
Capital gains (0.47) (0.09) - - -
Return of capital (0.12) (0.12) (0.77) (1.37) -

Total distributions (0.70) (0.60) (1.00) (1.63) (1.63)
Fund share transactions

Effect of reinvestment of distributions (0.01) (0.01) (0.02) (0.02) (0.01)
Decrease in net asset value from rights offering (0.52) - - (0.53) -
Total Fund share transactions (0.53) (0.01) (0.02) (0.55) (0.01)

Net asset value, end of period $12.82 $16.78 $14.18 $13.11 $16.66
Market value, end of period $9.53 $13.43 $11.85 $11.01 $15.12
Total Return (2)

Based on net asset value (18.75)% 24.09% 18.13% (10.65)% 7.28%
Based on market price (24.54)% 18.84% 17.55% (17.32)% 10.83%

Ratios/Supplemental Data (3)

Net assets, end of period (000s omitted) $158,852 $179,401 $151,005 $138,417 $144,280
Ratios to average net assets of:

Total expenses (4) (5) 1.63% 1.77% 1.62% 1.65% 1.55%
Net expenses (6) 1.63% 1.77% 1.62% 1.65% 1.55%
Net investment income     1.28% 1.04% 1.85% 2.02% 1.94%

Portfolio turnover rate 59% 40% 69% 35% 52%
Leverage analysis, end of period:

Outstanding loan balance (000s omitted) $  26,728 $ 35,000 $27,780 $ 8,066 $17,284
Asset coverage per $1,000 (7) $ 6,943 $ 6,126 $ 6,436 $ 18,161 $  9,347

Average commission rate paid $ 0.0215 $ 0.0174 $0.0143 $0.0185 $ 0.0131

Year Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

See notes to financial statements.
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to the Shareholders and Board of trustees of
Dividend and Income Fund
New York, New York

Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabili-
ties of Dividend and Income Fund (the “Fund”), including the sched-
ule of investments, as of December 31, 2018, the related statement
of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, the statements
of changes in net assets for each of the two years in the period then
ended, and financial highlights for each of the five years in the period
then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “fi-
nancial statements”).  In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as of
December 31, 2018, the results of its operations and cash flows for
the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the two
years in the period then ended, and the financial highlights for each
of the five years in the period then ended, in conformity with ac-
counting principles generally accepted in the united States of Amer-
ica.

Basis for Opinion
these financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund’s man-
agement.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Fund’s fi-
nancial statements based on our audits.  We are a public accounting
firm registered with the public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(united States) (“pCAOB”) and are required to be independent with re-
spect to the Fund in accordance with the u.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Ex-
change Commission and the pCAOB.  We have served as the Fund’s
auditor since 2011.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
pCAOB.  those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud.  the Fund is not required to have, nor were we engaged to per-
form, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  As part
of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control over fi-
nancial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of ma-
terial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the over-
all presentation of the financial statements. Our procedures included
confirmation of securities owned as of December 31, 2018 by corre-
spondence with the custodian.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

tAIt, WEllEr & BAKEr llp
philadelphia, pennsylvania
February 19, 2019
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the following table sets forth certain information concerning the trustees currently serving on the Board of trustees of the Fund. the trustees of
each class shall serve for terms of three years, or thereafter when their successors are elected and qualify. 

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES (1)

Name, Address (2), 
and Date of Birth

Position(s)
Held 

with the
Fund

Trustee
Since

Principal 
Occupation(s) 

For the Past Five Years

Number of 
Portfolios 
in Fund 

Complex
Overseen by

Trustee (3)

Other 
Directorships

Held by 
Trustee 

During the Past
Five Years (4)

ROGER ATKINSON
January 25, 1961

Class I
Trustee

2018 Since 2007, Mr. Atkinson has served as a manager with Cell-
Mark Inc., a pulp and paper trading company.  His responsibili-
ties include directing trading activity, acquisitions, and risk
management.

1 None

PETER K. WERNER
August 16, 1959

Class II
Trustee

2011 Since 1996, Mr. Werner has taught, directed, and coached many
programs at The Governor’s Academy of Byfield, MA. Currently,
he teaches economics and history at the Governor’s Academy.
Previously, he held the position of Vice President in the Fixed In-
come Departments of Lehman Brothers and First Boston. His
responsibilities included trading sovereign debt instruments, cur-
rency arbitrage, syndication, medium term note trading, and
money market trading.

4 None

JON TOMASSON
September 20, 1958

Class III
Trustee

2017 Since 2002, Mr. Tomasson has served as the Chief Executive
Officer of Vinland Capital Investments, LLC, a real estate in-
vestment company that he founded. Prior to starting Vinland,
Mr. Tomasson was a principal with Cardinal Capital Partners,
a leading investor in single-tenant net-leased property, and
served as a Vice President at Citigroup in the Global Real Es-
tate Equity and Structured Finance group, part of the Real Es-
tate Investment Bank, with both transactional and various
man agement responsibilities.

4 Eagle Bulk
Shipping Inc.(7)

INTERESTED TRUSTEE

THOMAS B. WINMILL (5) (6)

PO Box 4, Walpole, 
NH 03608
June 25, 1959 

Class II
Trustee;

Chairman,
President,

Chief 
Executive

Officer,
Chief
Legal 
Officer

2011 Mr. Winmill is President, Chief Executive Officer, Chairman, Chief
Legal Officer, and a Trustee or Director of the Fund, Foxby Corp.,
and Midas Series Trust. He is a Director or Manager, President,
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Legal Officer of the Investment
Manager and Midas Management Corporation, registered in-
vestment advisers (collectively, the “Advisers”), Bexil Securities
LLC and Midas Securities Group, Inc., registered broker-dealers
(collectively, the “Broker-Dealers”), Bexil Corporation, a holding
company (“Bexil”), and Winmill & Co. Incorporated, a holding
company (“Winco”). He is a Director of Global Self Storage, Inc.,
a self storage REIT (“SELF”), and Bexil American Mortgage Inc.
He is Chairman of the Investment Policy Committee of each of
the Advisers (the “IPCs”), and he is a portfolio manager of the
Fund, Foxby Corp., Midas Fund, and Midas Magic. He is a mem-
ber of the New York State Bar and the SEC Rules Committee of
the Investment Company Institute. 

4 Global Self
Storage, Inc.
Eagle Bulk

Shipping Inc.(7)

(1) Refers to trustees who are not “interested persons” of the Fund as defined under the Act.  (2) Unless otherwise noted, the address of record of the trustees is 11 Hanover
Square, New York, New York, 10005.  (3) The “Fund Complex” is comprised of the Fund, Foxby Corp., and Midas Series Trust (with two series) which are managed by the In-
vestment Manager or its affiliates.  (4) Refers to directorships and trusteeships held by a trustee during the past five years in any company with a class of securities registered
pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or any company registered as an investment company under the Act, excluding those within the Fund Complex.
(5) Thomas B. Winmill is an “interested person” (as defined in the Act) of the Fund due to his affiliation with the Investment Manager.  (6) Thomas B. Winmill and Mark C. Winmill
are brothers; Thomas B. Winmill and William M. Winmill are father and son, respectively; William M. Winmill is the nephew of Mark C. Winmill.  (7) Thomas B. Winmill and Jon
Tomasson ceased serving as directors of Eagle Bulk Shipping Inc. in 2014.  
Messrs. Tomasson, Atkinson, and Werner also serve on the Audit and Nominating Committees of the Board. Mr. Winmill also serves on the Executive Committee of the Board. Each of
the trustees serves on the Continuing Trustees Committee of the Board.
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the executive officers, other than those who serve as trustees, and their relevant biographical information are set forth below.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Name, Address (1),
and Date of Birth

Position(s) 
Held with 
the Fund

Officer 
Since (2)

Principal 
Occupation(s) 

for the Past Five Years

Russell Kamerman, Esq.
July 8, 1982

Chief Compliance
Officer, Secretary, 

and General
Counsel

2014 Chief Compliance Officer (since 2014), Secretary (since 2017), and General Counsel
(since 2017) of the other investment companies in the Fund Complex, the Advisers, the
Broker-Dealers, and Bexil. He is Assistant Chief Compliance Officer, Assistant Secre-
tary, and Assistant General Counsel of SELF, Winco, and Tuxis Corporation, a real es-
tate company (“Tuxis”). From December 2014 to June 2017, Mr. Kamerman served as
Anti-Money Laundering Officer of the other investment companies in the Fund Complex,
the Advisers, Bexil, SELF, Winco and Tuxis. He is a member of the New York State Bar
and the Chief Compliance Officer Committee and the Advertising Compliance Advisory
Committee of the Investment Company Institute. Previously, he was an attorney in pri-
vate practice focusing on regulatory, compliance, and other general corporate matters re-
lating to the structure, formation, and operation of investment funds and investment
advisers.

Heidi Keating
March 28, 1959

Vice President Fund: 2012
Predeces-
sor Fund:

2011

Vice President of the other investment companies in the Fund Complex, the Advisers, the
Broker-Dealers, Bexil, SELF, Tuxis, and Winco. She is a member of the IPCs.

Donald Klimoski II, Esq.
September 24, 1980

Assistant Secre-
tary, Assistant

General Counsel,
and Assistant

Chief Compliance 
Officer

2017 Assistant Secretary, Assistant General Counsel, and Assistant Chief Compliance Officer of
the other investment companies in the Fund Complex, the Advisers, the Broker-Dealers,
and Bexil. He is Chief Compliance Officer, Secretary, and General Counsel of SELF, Winco,
and Tuxis. He is a member of the New York, New Jersey and Patent Bars and the Com-
pliance Advisory Committee of the Investment Company Institute. Previously, he served as
Associate General Counsel of Commvault Systems, Inc. Prior to that, he was an associ-
ate at Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, where his practice focused on mergers and acquisitions,
securities law, corporate governance, intellectual property and related matters.

Thomas O’Malley
July 22, 1958

Chief Accounting
Officer, Chief Fi-
nancial Officer,
Treasurer, and 
Vice President

Fund: 2012
Predeces-
sor Fund:

2011

Chief Accounting Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, and Treasurer of the other
investment companies in the Fund Complex, the Advisers, the Broker-Dealers, Bexil, SELF,
Tuxis, and Winco. He is a certified public accountant.

Mark C. Winmill (3)

November 26, 1957
Vice President 2012 Vice President of the other investment companies in the Fund Complex and Midas Man-

agement Corporation. He is a member of the IPCs. He is President, Chief Executive Offi-
cer, Chairman, and a Director of SELF and Tuxis. He is Executive Vice President and a
Director of Winco, and a principal of the Broker-Dealers. 

William M. Winmill (3)

December 29, 1991
Vice President 2017 Vice President of the other investment companies in the Fund Complex, the Advisers, the

Broker-Dealers, Bexil, SELF, Tuxis, and Winco. From 2014 to 2016, he served these com-
panies as Compliance Assistant and Accounting Assistant, after graduating from Bowdoin
College in 2014. He is a member of the IPCs, and he is a portfolio manager of Dividend and
Income Fund, Foxby Corp., and Midas Magic.

(1) Unless otherwise noted, the address of record of the officers is 11 Hanover Square, New York, New York, 10005. (2) Officers hold their positions with the Fund until a successor has been
duly elected and qualifies. Officers are generally elected annually. The officers were last elected on December 13, 2018. (3) Thomas B. Winmill and Mark C. Winmill are brothers; Thomas
B. Winmill and William M. Winmill are father and son, respectively; William M. Winmill is the nephew of Mark C. Winmill.
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Investment Objectives and policies
the Fund’s primary investment objective is to seek high current income.
Capital appreciation is a secondary objective. the investment objec-
tives of the Fund are fundamental policies that may not be changed
without a vote of a majority of the Fund’s outstanding voting secur-
ities. the Fund is also subject to certain investment policies and 
restrictions that are fundamental and cannot be changed without 
such vote. A majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund 
is defined under the Company Act as the lesser of: (i) 67% or more of
the Fund’s shares present at a meeting if more than 50% of the out-
standing shares of the Fund are present or represented by proxy; or 
(ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Fund. All other 
investment strategies, policies, and restrictions described are not 
fundamental and may be changed by the Board without shareholder ap-
proval except as required by law. 

limitations on Ownership
the Fund’s governing documents contain provisions designed to 
prevent an ownership change from taking place, which could limit 
the Fund’s ability to use capital loss carryovers, by limiting the ability
of persons to own more than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares
without the Board’s prior approval. these provisions may have an anti-
takeover effect on the Fund as do certain other provisions the Fund
currently takes advantage of under Delaware law.

Additional Offerings
the Fund had previously filed a shelf registration statement with the
SEC allowing it to issue an additional $150 million shares of benefi-
cial interest which was declared effective on June 30, 2015, and ter-
minated three years thereafter.  On September 28, 2015, pursuant
to the first take-down under the shelf registration statement involving
a rights offering, shareholders of the Fund received one non-trans-
ferable right for each share of the Fund held on that date rounded up
to the nearest number of rights evenly divisible by three.  On Novem-
ber 2, 2015, the Fund issued 1,821,255 shares of beneficial interest
and recorded proceeds of $21,162,983, prior to the deduction of
shelf and rights offering expenses of $276,827.  On December 26,
2017, pursuant to the second take-down under the shelf registration
statement involving a rights offering, shareholders of the Fund re-
ceived one nontransferable right for each share of the Fund held on
that date rounded up to the nearest number of rights evenly divisible
by three. On February 2, 2018, the Fund issued 1,654,761 shares of
beneficial interest and recorded proceeds of $23,497,606, prior to
the deduction of shelf and rights offering expenses at $159,595.  

the Fund, subject to market conditions, may raise additional equity
capital from time to time in varying amounts and utilizing various of-
fering methods. While raising additional equity capital by selling new

shares may allow the Fund to pursue additional investment oppor-
tunities without the need to sell existing portfolio investments, it also
entails risks — including that the issuance of additional shares of
beneficial interest may reduce the premium or increase the discount
at which the Fund’s shares trade to net asset value in the second-
ary market.  

Future offerings under a new registration statement, if any, will con-
tain detailed information regarding the offering and should be re-
viewed carefully before investing. this report is not an offer to sell
Fund shares and is not a solicitation of an offer to buy Fund shares
in any jurisdiction where the offers or sales are not permitted.

proxy Voting
the Fund’s proxy Voting Guidelines, which describe the policies and
procedures the Fund uses to determine how to vote proxies relating to
portfolio securities, as well as its proxy voting record for the most re-
cent 12 months ended June 30, are available without charge by call-
ing the Fund collect at 1-212-785-0900, on the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov, and on the Fund’s website at www.DividendandIncome-
Fund.com.

Quarterly Schedule of portfolio Holdings
the Fund files its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC
for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-Q. the
Fund’s Forms N-Q are available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
the Fund’s Forms N-Q may be reviewed and copied at the SEC’s pub-
lic reference room in Washington, DC, and information on the oper-
ation of the public reference room may be obtained by calling
1-800-SEC-0330. the Fund makes the Forms N-Q available on its 
website at www.DividendandIncomeFund.com.

Governing Documents
In December 2018, the Fund’s Amended and restated Agreement
and Declaration of trust (“Declaration of trust”) and Bylaws (collec-
tively, the “Governing Documents”) were amended.  the Declaration of
trust was amended to clarify that the restrictions contained in Article
II, Section 12 thereof are for the purposes of, among other things, as-
sisting the Board to better defend against takeover activities, such as
to defend against arbitrageurs attempting to make a short term profit
in Fund shares while trading at a discount to net asset value potentially
at the expense of long term investors, and impeding and discouraging
mergers, tender offers, and proxy contests.  Additionally, the Declara-
tion of trust was amended to provide that the Continuing trustees (as
defined therein), rather than the trustees, shall have the exclusive
power to adopt, alter, or repeal any provision of the Fund's Bylaws and
to make new Bylaws. the Declaration of trust was further amended to

the additional information below and on the following pages is supplemental and not part of the financial statements of the Fund.
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clarify that no shareholder shall have any right to inspect any account,
book, or document of the trust, including, but not limited to, the share
ledger, except as required by the Bylaws or by applicable law to be
made available to Shareholders of record for a proper purpose in such
capacity. 

the Bylaws were amended to remove the requirement to commence
a tender offer not more than 45 days after the day on which an in-
vestment advisory agreement, a sub-advisory agreement or a man-
agement agreement between the Fund and certain affiliated persons
(as described in the superseded Bylaws) is approved by the Board.
Additionally, the Bylaws previously provided that: at any meeting of the
Shareholders the chairman of the meeting shall have the power to ad-
journ the meeting from time to time to a date not more than 120 days
after the original record date without further notice other than an-
nouncement at the meeting, and (ii) the Board may fix in advance a
record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to no-
tice of, or to vote at, any shareholders' meeting provided that, among
other things, such record date shall not exceed 120 days preceding the
date on which the particular action requiring such determination will
be taken. the Bylaws were amended to increase both of the foregoing
120 day time frames to 150 days. the Bylaws were further amended
to clarify that a “public announcement” (as defined therein) shall
mean, among other things, disclosure in a document posted on the

Fund’s website or disseminated by the Fund through a press release
distribution service. 

the amendments to the Governing Documents described above could
have the effect of, among other things, delaying or preventing a change
of control of the Fund. the foregoing summary is not an exhaustive
list of the December 2018 amendments and is subject to the Gov-
erning Documents of the Fund, which are on file with the SEC and
available on the Fund’s website http://www.DividendandIncome-
Fund.com.

Certain provisions in the Fund’s Governing Documents could have the
effect of, among other things,  depriving the owners of shares in the
Fund of opportunities to sell their shares at a premium over prevailing
market prices by discouraging a third party from seeking to obtain con-
trol of the Fund in a tender offer or similar transaction or bringing liti-
gation against the Fund and/or any trustee, officer, employee or
affiliate thereof. the overall effect of these provisions is to, among
other things, render more difficult the accomplishment of a merger or
the assumption of control by a principal shareholder.  For more infor-
mation, please refer to the Fund’s Governing Documents, which are on
file with the SEC and available on the Fund’s website http://www.Div-
idendandIncomeFund.com.
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2019 Quarterly Distribution Dates
Declaration record payment
March 1 March 15 March 29
June 3 June 17 June 28
September 3 September 17 September 30
December 2 December 16 December 30

HISTORICAL DISTRIBUTION SUMMARY*
PERIOD Investment Income Return of Capital Capital Gains Total
2018 $ 0.11 $ 0.12 $ 0.47 $ 0.70
2017 $ 0.39 $ 0.12 $ 0.09 $ 0.60
2016 $ 0.23 $ 0.77 $       - $ 1.00
2015 $ 0.26 $ 1.37 $       - $ 1.63
2014** $ 1.63 $ - $       - $ 1.63
2013** $ 1.16 $ 0.47 $       - $ 1.63
2012 $ 0.56 $ 1.07 $       - $ 1.63
2011 $ 1.00 $ 0.76 $       - $ 1.76
2010 $ 1.40  $ 0.24  $       - $ 1.64  
2009 $ 1.56  $ 0.08 $       - $ 1.64
2008 $ 2.36  $ 1.08  $       - $ 3.44  
2007 $ 3.36  $ 0.20 $       - $ 3.56
2006 $ 3.72 $ - $       - $ 3.72
2005 $ 2.12 $ 1.88 $       - $ 4.00
2004 $ 2.16  $ 1.84  $       - $ 4.00
2003 $ 2.44  $ 1.56 $       - $ 4.00
2002 $ 2.64  $ 1.84  $       - $ 4.48
2001 $ 2.60  $ 2.36 $       - $ 4.96
2000 $ 3.20  $ 1.76 $       - $ 4.96
1999 $ 3.44  $ 1.40  $ 0.12 $ 4.96
From June 29, 1998 to November 30, 1998 $ 1.64  $ - $       - $ 1.64

* the Fund implemented a 1-for-4 reverse stock split with an ex-date of December 10, 2012.  prior period distribution amounts have been restated to reflect the impact 
of the reverse stock split.

** Includes net capital gains recognized in the year and distributable as ordinary income in accordance with tax regulations.
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terms and Conditions of the 2015 Amended Dividend rein-
vestment plan
1. Each shareholder (the “Shareholder”) holding shares (the “Shares”)
of Dividend and Income Fund (the “Fund”) will automatically be a par-
ticipant in the Dividend reinvestment plan (the “plan”), unless the
Shareholder specifically elects to receive all dividends and capital
gains in cash by notice to American Stock transfer & trust Company,
llC, 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219, 1-800-278-4353,
as agent under the plan (the “Agent”). the Agent will open an account
for each Shareholder under the plan in the same name in which such
Shareholder’s Shares are registered.

2. Whenever the Fund declares a capital gain distribution or an in-
come dividend payable in Shares or cash, participating Shareholders
will take the distribution or dividend entirely in Shares and the Agent
will automatically receive the Shares, including fractions, for the Share-
holder’s account in accordance with the following:

Whenever the Market price (as defined in Section 3 below) per Share
is equal to or exceeds the net asset value per Share at the time Shares
are valued for the purpose of determining the number of Shares equiv-
alent to the cash dividend or capital gain distribution (the “Valuation
Date”), participants will be issued additional Shares equal to the
amount of such dividend divided by the lower of the Fund’s net asset
value per Share or the Fund’s Market price per Share. Whenever the
Market price per Share is less than such net asset value on the Valu-
ation Date, participants will be issued additional Shares equal to the
amount of such dividend divided by the Market price. the Valuation
Date is the business day before the dividend or distribution payment
date. If the Fund should declare a dividend or capital gain distribution
payable only in cash, the Agent will, as purchasing agent for the par-
ticipating Shareholders, buy Shares in the open market or elsewhere,
for such Shareholders’ accounts after the payment date, except that
the Agent will endeavor to terminate purchases in the open market
and cause the Fund to issue the remaining Shares if, following the
commencement of the purchases, the Market price of the Shares ex-
ceeds the net asset value. these remaining Shares will be issued by
the Fund at a price equal to the lower of the Fund’s net asset value per
Share or the Market price.

In a case where the Agent has terminated open market purchases and
caused the issuance of remaining Shares by the Fund, the number of
Shares received by the participant in respect of the cash dividend or
distribution will be based on the weighted average of prices paid for
Shares purchased in the open market and the price at which the Fund
issues remaining Shares. to the extent that the Agent is unable to ter-
minate purchases in the open market before the Agent has completed
its purchases, or remaining Shares cannot be issued by the Fund be-
cause the Fund declared a dividend or distribution payable only in
cash, and the Market price exceeds the net asset value of the Shares,
the average Share purchase price paid by the Agent may exceed the

net asset value of the Shares, resulting in the acquisition of fewer
Shares than if the dividend or capital gain distribution had been paid
in Shares issued by the Fund.

the Agent will apply all cash received as a dividend or capital gain dis-
tribution to purchase shares on the open market as soon as practica-
ble after the payment date of the dividend or capital gain distribution,
but in no event later than 45 days after that date, except when neces-
sary to comply with applicable provisions of the federal securities laws.

3. For all purposes of the plan: (a) the Market price of the Shares on
a particular date shall be the average of the volume weighted average
sale prices or, if no sale occurred, then the mean between the closing
bid and asked quotations, for the Shares quoted on the NYSE on each
of the five business days the Shares traded ex-dividend on the NYSE
immediately prior to such date, and (b) net asset value per share on
a particular date shall be as determined by or on behalf of the Fund.

4. the open market purchases provided for herein may be made on
any securities exchange on which the Shares are traded, in the over-
the-counter market, or in negotiated transactions, and may be on such
terms as to price, delivery, and otherwise as the Agent shall deter-
mine. Funds held by the Agent uninvested will not bear interest, and
it is understood that, in any event, the Agent shall have no liability in
connection with any inability to purchase Shares within 45 days after
the initial date of such purchase as herein provided, or with the tim-
ing of any purchases effected. the Agent shall have no responsibility
as to the value of the Shares acquired for the Shareholder’s account.

5. the Agent will hold Shares acquired pursuant to the plan in non-
certificated form in the Agent’s name or that of its nominee. At no ad-
ditional cost, a Shareholder participating in the plan may send to the
Agent for deposit into its plan account those certificate shares of the
Fund in its possession. these Shares will be combined with those unis-
sued full and fractional Shares acquired under the plan and held by
the Agent. Shortly thereafter, such Shareholder will receive a state-
ment showing its combined holdings. the Agent will forward to the
Shareholder any proxy solicitation material and will vote any Shares
so held for the Shareholder only in accordance with the proxy returned
by the Shareholder to the Fund.

6. the Agent will confirm to the Shareholder each acquisition for the
Shareholder’s account as soon as practicable but not later than 60
days after the date thereof. Although the Shareholder may from time
to time have an individual fractional interest (computed to three dec-
imal places) in a Share, no certificates for fractional Shares will be is-
sued. However, dividends and distributions on fractional Shares will be
credited to Shareholders’ accounts. In the event of a termination of a
Shareholder’s account under the plan, the Agent will adjust for any
such undivided fractional interest in cash at the opening market value
of the Shares at the time of termination.
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7. Any stock dividends or split Shares distributed by the Fund on
Shares held by the Agent for the Shareholder will be credited to the
Shareholder’s account. In the event that the Fund makes available to
the Shareholder the right to purchase additional Shares or other 
securities, the Shares held for a Shareholder under the plan will be
added to other Shares held by the Shareholder in calculating the num-
ber of rights to be issued to such Shareholder. transaction processing
may either be curtailed or suspended until the completion of any stock
dividend, stock split, or corporate action.

8. the Agent’s service fee for handling capital gain distributions or in-
come dividends will be paid by the Fund. the Shareholder will be
charged a pro rata share of brokerage commissions on all open mar-
ket purchases.

9. the Shareholder may terminate the account under the plan by no-
tifying the Agent. A termination will be effective immediately if notice
is received by the Agent three days prior to any dividend or distribution
payment date. If the request is received less than three days prior to
the payment date, then that dividend will be invested, and all subse-
quent dividends will be paid in cash.

10. these terms and conditions may be amended or supplemented by
the Fund at any time or times but, except when necessary or appro-
priate to comply with applicable law or the rules or policies of the Se-
curities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory authority,
only by mailing to the Shareholder appropriate written notice at least
30 days prior to the effective date thereof. the amendment or sup-
plement shall be deemed to be accepted by the Shareholder unless,
prior to the effective date thereof, the Agent receives written notice of
the termination of such Shareholder’s account under the plan. Any

such amendment may include an appointment by the Fund of a suc-
cessor agent in its place and stead under these terms and conditions,
with full power and authority to perform all or any of the acts to be per-
formed by the Agent. upon any such appointment of an Agent for the
purpose of receiving dividends and distributions, the Fund will be au-
thorized to pay to such successor Agent all dividends and distributions
payable on Shares held in the Shareholder’s name or under the plan
for retention or application by such successor Agent as provided in
these terms and conditions.

11. In the case of Shareholders, such as banks, brokers, or nominees,
which hold Shares for others who are the beneficial owners, the Agent
will administer the plan on the basis of the number of Shares certified
from time to time by the Shareholders as representing the total
amount registered in the Shareholder’s name and held for the account
of beneficial owners who are to participate in the plan.

12. the Agent shall at all times act in good faith and agree to use its
best efforts within reasonable limits to insure the accuracy of all serv-
ices performed under this agreement and to comply with applicable
law, but assumes no responsibility and shall not be liable for loss or
damage due to errors unless the errors are caused by its negligence,
bad faith, or willful misconduct or that of its employees.

13. Neither the Fund nor the Agent will be liable for any act performed
in good faith or for any good faith omission to act, including without lim-
itation, any claim of liability arising out of (i) failure to terminate a
Shareholder’s account, sell shares, or purchase shares, (ii) the prices
at which shares are purchased or sold for the Shareholder’s account,
and (iii) the time such purchases or sales are made, including price
fluctuation in market value after such purchases or sales.
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 Rev. 7/2017 
PPRRIIVVAAAACCYYY PPOOLLIICCYYY

FFAACCTTSS WWHHAATT DDOOEESS DDIIVVIIDDEENNDD AANNDD IINNCCOOMMEE FFUUNNDD DDOO WWIITTHH YYOOUURR PPEERRSSOONNAALL IINNFFOORRMMAATTIIOONN??   

WWhhyy?? Financial companies choose how they share your personal information.  Federal law gives consumers the
right to limit some but not all sharing.  Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and
protect your personal information.  Please read this notice carefully to understand what we do. 

WWhhaatt?? The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with
us.  This information can include:

Social Security number
Account balances
Transaction history 

Transaction or loss history
Account transactions
Retirement assets

When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice. 

HHooww? All financial companies need to share customers’ personal information to run their everyday business.  In 
the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their customers’ personal 
information; the reasons Dividend and Income Fund chooses to share; and whether you can limit this
sharing.

RReeaassoonnss wwee ccaann sshhaarree yyoouurr ppeerrssoonnaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn DDooeess DDiivviiddeenndd aanndd IInnccoommee 
FFuunndd sshhaarree?

CCaann yyoouu lliimmiitt tthhiiss 
sshhaarriinngg?

FFoorr oouurr eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond 
to court orders and legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus

Yes No

FFoorr oouurr mmaarrkkeettiinngg ppuurrppoosseess ––
to offer our products and services to you

Yes No

FFoorr jjooiinntt mmaarrkkeettiinngg wwiitthh ootthheerr nnoonnaafffffffiilliiaatteedd ffiinnaanncciiaall ccoommppaanniieess No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess’’ eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
Information about your transactions and experiences

No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess’’ eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
Information about your creditworthiness 

No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess ttoo mmaarrkkeett ttoo yyoouu Yes Yes

FFoorr nnoonnaafffffffiilliiaatteess ttoo mmaarrkkeett ttoo yyoouu No We don’t share

TToo LLiimmiitt SShhaarriinngg Call Dividend and Income Fund at 212-785-0900 –– our menu will prompt you through your choices; 
or
Mail the form below

PPlleeaassee nnoottee::
If you are a new customer, we can begin sharing your information 30 days from the date we sent this 
notice.  When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share yor ur information as described in this
notice.
However, you can contact us at any time to limit our sharing. 

 

QQuueessttiioonnss? Call Dividend and Income Fund at 1-212-785-0900 or go to www.dividendandincomefund.com

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
MMaaiill--iinn FFoorrmm 
LLeeaavvee BBllaannkk oorr
[If you have a joint 
account, your choice will
apply to everyone on
your account unless you
mark below.

 Apply my choice only 
to me] 

Mark if you want to limit:
  Do not allow your affiliates to use my personal informatioy n to market to me. 

Name MMaaiill ttoo::
Dividend and Income
Fund
11 Hanover Square, 12th

Floor 
New York, NY 10005 

Address
 
City, State, Zip 
Account # 

Mail to:
Dividend and Income Fund
11 Hanover Square
12th Floor
New York, NY 10005
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PPaaggee 22 

WWhhoo wwee aarre

WWhhoo iiss pprroovviiddiinngg tthhiiss nnoottiiccee?? Dividend and Income Fund 

WWhhaatt wwee ddoo
HHooww ddooeess DDiivviiddeenndd aanndd IInnccoommee FFuunndd pprrootteecctt
mmyy ppeerrssoonnaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn?? 

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include computer
safeguards and secured files and buildings. 

HHooww ddooeess DDiivviiddeenndd aanndd IInnccoommee FFuunndd ccoolllleecctt
mmyy ppeerrssoonnaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn?? 

We collect your personal information, for example, when you

Open an account 
Buy securities from us 
Provide account information 
Give us your contact information 
Tell us where to send the money 

WWhhyy ccaann’’tt II lliimmiitt aallll sshhaarriinngg??  Federal law gives you the right to limit only

Sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes – information about your
creditworthiness
Affiliates from using your information to market to you 
Sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing.
WWhhaatt hhaappppeennss wwhheenn II lliimmiitt sshhaarriinngg ffoorr aann
aaccccoouunntt II hhoolldd jjooiinnttllyy wwiitthh ssoommeeoonnee eellssee??

Your choices will apply to everyone on your account –– unless you tell us otherwise.

DDeeffiinniittiioonns
Afffffffffffff iilliiaatteess Companies related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial and 

nonfinancial companies.

Dividend and Income Fund shares with our affiliates.

NNoonnaaffffffiilliiaatteess Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial and 
nonfinancial companies.

Dividend and Income Fund does not share with nonaffiliates so they can
market their financial products or services to you. 

JJooiinntt mmaarrkkeettiinngg A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market 
financial products or services to you. 

Dividend and Income Fund does not jointly market. 
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Investment Manager
Bexil Advisers llC
11 Hanover Square
New York, NY 10005
1-212-785-0900

Stock transfer Agent and registrar
American Stock transfer & trust Company, llC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219
www.amstock.com
1-800-278-4353

Please note - there is no assurance that the Fund’s investment objectives will be attained.  past performance is no guarantee of future results. You should consider the in-
vestment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses of the Fund carefully before investing.  the Fund’s investment policies, management fees, and other matters of inter-
est to prospective investors may be found in its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including its annual and semi-annual reports. to obtain a copy
of the reports, please call us toll-free at 855-411-6432 or download them at http://dividendandincomefund.com/literature/.  please read the reports carefully before investing.

Shares of closed end funds frequently trade at a discount from their Net Asset Value (“NAV”).  this characteristic is a risk separate and distinct from the risk that the Fund's
NAV has decreased in the past, and therefore could decrease in the future, as a result of its investment activities.  Neither the Investment Manager nor the Fund can predict
whether shares of the Fund will trade at, below, or above NAV.  the risk of holding shares of the Fund that might trade at a discount is more pronounced for investors expecting
to sell their shares in a relatively short period of time after acquiring them because, for those investors, realization of a gain or loss on their investments is likely to be more
dependent upon the existence of a premium or discount than upon portfolio performance.  the shares of the Fund are designed primarily for long term investors and should
not be considered a vehicle for trading purposes.  the NAV of the Fund shares typically will fluctuate with price changes of the Fund's portfolio securities, and these fluctua-
tions are likely to be greater in the case of a fund which uses leverage, as the Fund may from time to time.  In the event that shares of the Fund trade at a premium to NAV,
there is no assurance that any such premium will be sustained for any period of time and will not decrease, or that the shares of the Fund will not trade at a discount to NAV
thereafter. the market price for the Fund is based on supply and demand which fluctuates daily based on many factors, such as economic conditions and global events, in-
vestor sentiment, and security-specific factors.  

this report, including the financial statements herein, is provided for informational purposes only. this is not a prospectus, circular, or representation intended for use in the
purchase of shares of the Fund or any securities mentioned in this report. this report shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there
be any sale of, these securities in any state in which such offer, solicitation, or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any
such state, or an exemption therefrom.

the Fund does not make available copies of its Statement of Additional Information because the Fund’s shares are not continuously offered, which means that the Fund's
Statement of Additional Information has not been updated since completion of the Fund's most recent offering and the information contained in the Fund's Statement of Ad-
ditional may have become outdated. 

Investment products, including shares of the Fund, are not insured federally or by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteed by, any financial institution and involve investment risk, including possible loss of principal and fluctuation in value. Consult with your tax advisor or attorney re-
garding specific tax issues.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements - Our views and opinions regarding the prospects of our portfolio holdings, the Fund, and the economy are “forward
looking statements” as defined under the u.S. federal securities laws which may or may not be accurate and may be materially different over future periods. Generally, the
words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “will,” and similar expressions identify forward looking statements, which generally are not historical
in nature. Forward looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to materially differ from the Fund’s historical experience
and its current expectations or projections indicated in any forward looking statements. these risks include, but are not limited to, equity securities risk, corporate bonds risk,
credit risk, interest rate risk, leverage and borrowing risk, additional risks of certain securities in which the Fund invests, market discount from net asset value, distribution
policy risk, management risk, and other risks discussed in the Fund’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We disclaim any obligation to update or alter any
forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.  thus you should not place undue reliance on forward looking statements,
which speak only as of the date they are made. 

Section 23 Notice - pursuant to Section 23 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, notice is hereby given that the Fund may in the future purchase its own
shares in the open market. these purchases may be made from time to time, at such times, and in such amounts, as may be deemed advantageous to the Fund, although
nothing herein shall be considered a commitment to purchase such shares.

Stock Data at December 31, 2018
NYSE Market price per Share $9.53
Net Asset Value per Share $12.82
Market price Discount to Net Asset Value 25.7%
NYSE ticker Symbol DNI
Net Asset Value ticker Symbol XDNIX
CuSIp Number 25538A204

DividendandIncomeFund.com
Visit us on the web at www.DividendandIncomeFund.com. the
site provides information about the Fund, including distributions,
press releases, and shareholder reports. For further information,
please email us at info@DividendandIncomeFund.com.

this report is for shareholder information. this is not a prospectus intended for use in the purchase or sale of Fund shares.
NOt FDIC INSurED       MAY lOSE VAluE       NOt BANK GuArANtEED

Dividend and Income Fund is part of a fund complex which includes Midas Fund, Midas Magic, and Foxby Corp.
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rESultS OF tHE ANNuAl MEEtING
An Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Fund was held on June 25,
2018 at 11 Hanover Square, 12th Floor, New York, New York 10005,
the Fund’s principal executive offices, for the following purpose:

1. to elect roger Atkinson to the Board of trustees of the Fund as a
Class I trustee to serve until the 2021 annual meeting of sharehold-
ers, or thereafter when his successor is elected and qualifies.

Votes For                              Votes Withheld 
9,324,290.178                             1,765,740 
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